Notice of Schools Forum BCP

Council

Date: Tuesday, 19 July 2022 at 4.00 pm

Venue: Committee Room, First Floor, BCP Civic Centre Annex, St Stephen's
Rd, Bournemouth BH2 6LL / ViaMS Teams

Membership:

Chairman:
Geoff Cherrill

Vice Chairman:
Patrick Earnshaw

Russell Arnold Phillip Gavin Jeremy Payne
Mark Avoth Brigid Hincks Sean Preston
Kate Carter Sue Johnson Dave Simpson
Jon Chapple Marie Lane Sian Thomas
Lauren Dean Nadine Lapskas VACANCY
Ben Doyle Dorian Lewis Clir N Greene
Linda Duly Jacqueline Page Clir M White

All Members of the Schools Forum are summoned to attend this remote meeting to consider
the items of business set out on the agenda below.

The press and public are welcome to attend this remote meeting and should email any
request to do so to the meeting contact below, and a meeting invite will be sent.

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389

if you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please
contact: Nicky Hooley on 01202 096660 or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

2g =

S o EEY

23

:: @
GRAHAM FARRANT o §
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 2%

= &
11 July 2022 < ©

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY



Maintaining and promoting high standards of conduct

Councillors should act solely

Declaring interests at meetings ?n terms of the public
Familiarise yourself with the Councillor Code of Conduct which can be found in interest
Part 6 of the Council’'s Constitution.
Bgfore the meeting, rgad the agenda aqd reports to see if the matters to be Councillors must avoid
discussed at the meeting concern your interests placing themselves under

any obligation to people or
organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence
them in their work. They
should not act or take
decisions in order to gain
financial or other material
benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends.
They must declare and
resolve any interests and
relationships

Objectivity

Councillors must act and
take decisions impartially,
fairly and on merit, using the
best evidence and without
discrimination or bias

Accountability

Councillors are accountable
to the public for their
decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to
the scrutiny necessaryto
ensure this

Openness

Councillors should act and
take decisions in an open
and transparent manner.
Information should not be
withheld from the public
unless there are clear and
lawful reasons for so doing

Honesty & Integrity

Does the matter directly relate to one of my Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPls)
(set out in Table 1)?

Does the matter directly relate to the
| have a DPI and cannot take part without finances or wellbeing of one of my Other
a dispensation Registerable Interests (ORIs)
(set out in Table 2)?

| have an ORI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

Does it directly relate to the finances or
wellbeing of me, a relative or a close
associate?

| have a NRI and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

Does it affect the finances or wellbeing of
me, a relative or a close associate or any
of my ORIs?

Am | or they affected to a greater extent that
most people? And would a reasonable person
think my judgement s clouded?

| have an interest and must disclose it.
| may speak as a member of the public but | have no interest to disclose
not discuss or vote and must leave the
room

What are the principles of bias and pre-determination and how do they affect my
participation in the meeting?

Bias and predetermination are common law concepts. If they affect you, your

participation in the meeting may call into question the decision arrived at on the Councillors should act with
item.

honesty and integrity and
should not place themselves
in situations where their
honesty and integrity may

At the time of making the decision, be questioned

did the decision maker have a closed Leadership
mind?

Councillors should exhibit

Bias Test Predetermination Test

In all the circumstances, would it
lead a fair minded and informed
observer to conclude that there was
a real possibility or a real danger that

the decision maker was biased?

. 4 these principles in their own
behaviour. They should
If a councillor appears to be biased or to have predetermined their decision, actively promote and
they must NOT participate in the meeting. robustly support the
" " " 7 - principles and be willing to
For more information or advice please contact the Monitoring Officer challenge poor behaviour

(susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk) wherever it occurs



AGENDA

ltems to be considered while the meeting is open to the public

1. Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. Declarations of Interest

Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance.
Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.

3. Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) 2022/23 5-10

BCP Council receives the ring-fenced dedicated schools grant (DSG) to
fund the separate early years and mainstream schools funding formulae.
The content of each formula is highly regulated by the Department for
Education (DfE) and stakeholders must be consulted. Consultations were
undertaken with each sector in the autumn, Schools Forum considered the
outcomes on 13 January 2022 and made recommendations to the council
about the use of the surplus funding in the schools block of £0.751 million.
It was agreed that the surplus is transferred to support pupils with high
needs, potentially to include an allocation of up to £0.4 million to the early
years' inclusion fund. This allocation would release funds to increase the
hourly EYSFF funding rates beyond those otherwise affordable. The
decision was to be made after the outcome was known of the mainstream
school top up funding banding review. Although the review has not yet
concluded with consultation currently underway, the financial impact of the
proposed new banding system is designed to be cost neutral in 2022/23.
Options to support the early years inclusion fund are presented in the
report.

No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

SCHOOLS FORUM BCP

Council

Report Subject Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) 2022/23
Meeting date 19 July 2022
Status Public Report

Executive summary | BCP Council receives the ring-fenced dedicated schools grant
(DSG) to fund the separate early years and mainstream schools
funding formulae. The content of each formula is highly regulated
by the Department for Education (DfE) and stakeholders must be
consulted. Consultations were undertaken with each sector in the
autumn, Schools Forum considered the outcomes on 13 January
2022 and made recommendations to the council about the use of
the surplus funding in the schools block of £0.751 million.

It was agreed that the surplus is transferred to support pupils with
high needs, potentially to include an allocation of up to £0.4
million to the early years' inclusion fund. This allocation would
release funds to increase the hourly EYSFF funding rates beyond
those otherwise affordable. The decision was to be made after the
outcome was known of the mainstream school top up funding
banding review. Although the review has not yet concluded with
consultation currently underway, the financial impact of the
proposed new banding system is designed to be cost neutral in
2022/23. Options to support the early years inclusion fund are
presented in the report.

Recommendations | i i\ RECOMMENDED that:

Schools Forum agrees a preferred option to utilise the
schools block funding transferred to high needs to support
growth in the budget for the SEND inclusion fund paid to
providers. This means that the base rate previously agreed is
to be uplifted by some level of increase. Schools Forum is
asked to consider its preferred option bearing in mind that
savings at that same level may be needed in future from the
inclusion fund.

Reason for The recommendation reflects the position of the Schools Forum
Recommendations | and acknowledges the support to early years providers which
balances the risks of overspending funding allocated by
government for early years and making appropriate provision for
children identified as needing extra support in mainstream
settings.




Portfolio Holder(s):

Councillor Nicola Greene, Portfolio Holder for Council Priorities

and Delivery

Corporate Director

Cathi Hadley, Corporate Director Children’s Services

Report Author (s)

Tanya Smith, Service Lead Admissions, Place Planning & Capital

Sarah Rempel, Director of Education & Skills

Contributors Rina Mistry, Head of Performance, Quality and Commissioning
Steve Ellis, Management Accountant, Education

Wards Council-wide

Classification For decision

Background Detail

1. The early years formula (for ages 2, 3 and 4) in BCP is for a sector comprised largely
of private, voluntary, and independent settings with a small number of nursery
classes in mainstream schools and academies. The DSG funding rates increased by
4% overall for 2022/23.

2. On 13 January 2022, the Schools Forum was asked to support the recommendation
from Children’s Services to support the Early Years Single Funding Formula
proposed and presented as Option 1. Under Option 1, the EYSFF is as follows:

Hourly Funded Rates for Children aged 2 2022/23: The 2021/22 base rate for 2-
year-olds is increased by £0.12 (2.3%) per hour in 2022/23

2021/22 2022/23
Allt'::rt;angion EYSFF Funding All;arz?'tlion EYSFF
i El t i
Funded Pr;:;:er ements Funded Provider Rate Note
Rate * Rate *
£5.16 £5.16 Base Rate £5.28 £5.28 Every child
£0.07 £2.00 or £6.30 | Inclusion Fund £0.16 £2.00 or £6.30 | Per eligible child
£0.16 Central Functions £0.16
£5.39 DSG Funding Per Hour £5.60




Hourly Funded Rate for Children aged 3 and 4 2022/23: 3 & 4-year-olds by £0.08
(1.9%). Table 2: Proposed EYSFF - Hourly Funding Rates 2022/23

2021/22 2022/23
Allocation EYSFF Funding Allocation EYSFF
Funded Pr;:;ger Elements Funded Provider Rate Note
Rate * Rate *
£4.18 £4.18 Base Rate £4.26 £4.26 Every child
£0.13 £0.53 Deprivation £0.13 £0.53 Per eligible child
£0.11 £2.00 or £6.30 | Inclusion Fund £0.20 £2.00 or £6.30 | Per eligible child
£0.02 Central Functions £0.02
£4.44 DSG Funding Per Hour £4.61

*The shaded grey allocations from the DSG funding levels are shown for context.

3. Under Option 1, it was proposed to increase the base rate by the residual amount
remaining after rightsizing the SEND Inclusion Fund for estimated growth of £0.4

million

in 2022/23.

The Schools Forum discussed the option of funding the growth needed for the

inclusion fund of £0.4 million from the high needs block. This was suggested as one
potential use of the surplus schools' block funding to be transferred but no decisions
could be made until the mainstream top up funding banding review had concluded

later in

the year.

On 22 February 2022, Cabinet considered a report which set out the proposals for

the distribution of the dedicated schools grant totalling £322m. Taking into account
the views of the Schools Forum, Cabinet agreed the following in respect of the Early
Years and High Need Block elements of the DSG:

a) The early years funding formula Option 1 is implemented from 1 April 2022
which includes an increase to the budget for the SEND inclusion fund paid to
providers with the balance of additional funding allocated to the formula base
rates. Option 1 balances the risks of overspending funding allocated by
government for early years and making appropriate provision for children
identified as needing extra support in mainstream settings.
b) Surplus school block funding estimated at £0.751 million is transferred to
support pupils with high needs. This acknowledges the decision of Schools
Forum and the constraints on any higher level being achieved.
¢) The base rate agreed under Option 1 is to be uplifted by any allocation from
the schools’ block transfer that is formally agreed by Schools Forum later in
the year. No decision can be made until the mainstream top up funding
banding review is concluded. Any increase that is agreed will be paid
retrospectively from 1 April 2022 without requiring any further decisions from

Council.




Progress of Mainstream Banding Review

6. It is planned that the financial implications of the banding review help to inform the

use of schools block transfer for high needs for Early Years. A decision on which
option to include in the mainstream banding review consultation with schools was

taken by officers on 27 June 2022. A month-long consultation exercise for the SEND
Mainstream banding descriptors and banding values commenced on 28 June 2022.

Feedback from the consultation will be considered when finalising the banding
values. Finalised descriptors and banding values will be presented to the Schools
Forum in September 2022 and to Cabinet in October 2022.

7. Importantly, the proposed increase in band values and proposed phased
implementation is designed to be cost neutral in 2022/23 with net savings in future
years. The additional costs from higher band funding are to be offset by savings in

independent, non-maintained and alternative provision placements and other support
packages as more pupils should remain in mainstream schools. This means that

funding could be made available to support the early years sector by meeting some
of the £0.4 million growth in the SEND inclusion fund. Given the implications of any
increase, the Council has identified the range of options considered in the paragraph

below.

Options Appraisal

8. The total growth of SEND inclusion is equal to £0.4m. Schools Forum is advised of

the following options for uplifting current rates. The table below shows four options A-
D costing between £88.9k for Option A and £400k for Option D. Corresponding

percentage increases are shown for each of the options comparing rates from last

year and from current rates. This is explained in the following example: Under Option

A there is a total costto the High Needs Budget of £88.9k which provides an

increase on current provider rates by 2p (0.4%) for 2, 3 and 4 year olds.

Increase from Current Rate Increase from Last Year New Rate for 22-23| Cost to
2yearOlds | 3&4 Year Olds 2yearOlds i 38&4 Year Olds 2YO i384Y0| HNB
£ % i f % £ % i f % £ i £ £

OptionA | £0.02 04%: £002  05% | £0.14  27% | £0.10  24% | £5.30 £4.28 | £88,900
OptionB | £0.04 0.8%: £0.04 09% | £0.16  31% | £0.12  29% | £5.32 £4.30 | £177,800
Option C | £0.07 13%: £0.07 16% | £019  37% | £015  36% | £535 £4.33 | £311,100
Option D | £0.09 1.7% i £0.09  21% | £021  41% i £017  41% | £5.37 £4.35| £400,000

9. Under any option, it is important to note that any decision to use surplus school block

funding for high needs is applicable for one year only. The transfer of £0.751 million

funding from the schools block to support high needs is also for one year only.

Consequently, any increase o provider base rates are guaranteed for one year only.

10. Preferred Option: Schools Forum agrees a preferred option to utilise the schools
block funding transferred to high needs to support growth in the budget for the SEND

inclusion fund paid to providers. This means that the base rate previously agreed is

to be uplifted by some level of increase. Schools Forum is asked to consider its




11.

preferred option bearing in mind that savings at that same level may be needed in
future from the inclusion fund.

The Council plans to undertake a review to establish if the inclusion fund could be
reduced by £100,000 for 2023/24 to enable the base rate increase to be permanent
and not suppress future increases. With the falling birth rate and as the impact of
Covid recedes, this should be possible. Early indications are that the SEN inclusion
fund will overspend the £900,000 budget this year, regardless of any agreed transfer
and therefore action is required to ensure the fund is affordable going forward.

Summary of Financial Implications

12.

13.

14.

The early years and mainstream formulae are set within the funding envelope of the
DSG. The 0.3% transfer of funding from the schools block to high needs is the
maximum affordable with all schools receiving their full NFF allocations and able to
be agreed by the Schools Forum.

The high needs block is a significant concern for the council and all measures need
to be considered to limit the funding gap with the growing caseload of children
needing support beyond that provided through mainstream funding mechanisms. Any
use of the HNB for the early years SEND Inclusion fund would be a new commitment
and add pressure to the HNB element of DSG.

The impact of the growing accumulated DSG deficit was considered in the Budget
and Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2022/23 Cabinet report in February 2022.

Summary of Legal Implications

15.

16.

The consultations undertaken and the formulae recommendations are compliant with
the School Funding Statutory Framework for 2022/23.

Funding rates for early years in 2022/23 must be provided to the sector by 31 March
2022. This does not preclude in-year one off additional payments should further
funding become available.

Summary of Human Resources Implications

17.

There are no human resources implications for the council. Any implications from
funding levels are for early years providers and schools.

Summary & Recommendations

18. The council receives the ring-fenced dedicated schools grant (DSG) to fund the

separate early years and mainstream schools funding formulae. The content of each
formula is highly regulated by the Department for Education (DfE) and stakeholders
must be consulted. Consultations have been undertaken with each sector. The
School's Forum considered the outcomes on 13 January 2022 and made
recommendations to the council about the use of the surplus funding in the schools
block of £0.751 mililon and it was agreed that this is transferred to support pupils with
high needs.



19. Following the progress of the mainstream top up funding banding review, the
Schools Forum is asked to consider the potential use of surplus schools block
funding transferred. One potential use is to support the growth needed for the
inclusion fund of up to £0.4 million. The preferred option is Option A presented in the
report. This provides an increase to provider base rates of 2.4% to £4.28. This will
increase the base rate by 2p for 2YO and 3&4 YOs. This requires a transfer from
HNB of £88,900.

20. It is recommended that Forum agree the preferred option to utilise the schools block
funding transferred to high needs to support growth in the budget for the SEND
inclusion fund paid to providers. The base rate previously agreed is to be uplifted by
the allocation agreed.

Background papers

Schools Forum Meeting — 13 January 2022
Council Cabinet Meeting — 9 February 2022
Council Full Council Meeting — 22 February 2022

10



	Agenda
	3 Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF) 2022/23

